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This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in National Register Bulletin, How 
to Complete the National Register of Historic Places Registration Form. If any item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for 
"not applicable." For functions, architectural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories from the 
instructions. Place additional certification comments, entries, and narrative items on continuation sheets if needed (NPS Form 10-900a).

1. Name of Property

historic name Central School ___________________

street & number 306 S.W. 2 Avenue

city or town Milton-Freewater

not for publication 

vicinity

state Oregon code OR county Umatilla code 059 zip code 97862

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended,
I hereby certify that this _X_ nomination__request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for
registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements 
set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my opinion, the property JL meets__does not meet the National Register Criteria. I recommend that this property
be considered significant at the following level(s) of significance;

national __statewide X local

of certifying ofTicialOitle: Deputy dfite Historic PSignature of certifying ofTicia

Oregon State Historic Preservation Office
Historic Preservation Officer Date

State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

In my opinion, the property__ meets___ does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signature of commenting official Date

Title State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

4. National Park Service Certification
I hereby c^fy that this property is:

V entered in the National Register

__ determined not eligible for the National Register

__ other (explain:) __

* __ determined eligible for the National Register

__ removed from the National Register

Sionature of the Keener
10

Date of Action
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5. Classification

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply.)

Category of Property
(Check only one box.)

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
private X building(s) 1 buildings

X public - Local district district
public - State site site
public - Federal structure structure

object 1 1 object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing)

Total

Number of contributing resources previously 
listed in the National Register

N/A

6. Function or Use
Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.) 

EDUCATION; School

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.) 

EDUCATION: School

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions.)

LATE 19*^ and 20“* CENTURY REVIVALS: 

Classical Revival, Italian Renaissance 

LATE VICTORIAN: Romanesque_______

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions.) 

foundation; CONCRETE

walls; BRICK. CONCRETE

roof: ASPHALT: Shingle

other: N/A
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Narrative Description
(Describe the historic and current physical appearance of the property. Explain contributing and noncontributing resources 
if necessary. Begin with a summary paragraph that briefly describes the general characteristics of the property, such as 
its location, setting, size, and significant features.)

Summary Paragraph

Constructed between 1909 and 1910, Central School is located at 306 S.W. 2"*^ Street, in the center of the 
rural community of Milton-Freewater, Umatilla County, Oregon. A mixture of twentieth-century Revival styles, 
the rectangular, two-story, brick building with a concrete foundation, daylight basement, and hipped roof 
communicates its scholarly function through the seamless incorporation of Classical, Renaissance, and 
Romanesque design elements. The central block of the main building is broken by a projecting full-height, 
centered pedimented entry on the east elevation and large rectangular bay on the west. The concrete stem 
wall that runs the perimeter of the entire building is punctuated at regular intervals by window openings, and is 
capped by a horizontal concrete header. The masonry walls are composed of alternating red and black bricks 
that create the impression of a woven surface. The brick pattern is interrupted by concrete quoins on the 
building’s corners and regularly placed windows with concrete sills. Rectangular windows have concrete lintels, 
while the arched windows located at the entry points feature a vertical-brick surround. A classical cornice with 
a wide frieze and dentils adorns the wall and overhanging hipped roof. The east fagade is dominated by a 
projecting entry featuring an archway composed of two projecting rectangular block plinths, each supporting 
one Tuscan-style column and a rusticated arch. Within the arch is a recessed entry space leading to the front 
doors. A front-facing gable is centered over the entry bay. Less ornate and un-recessed, arched, entries are 
located on the north and south sides. Modern mechanical equipment, a non-contributing storage container, 
and the contributing original bronze school bell are set along the west exterior wall. The 18,954 square-foot 
interior consists of an office, ten classrooms, and utility areas organized around a central hallway running from 
north to south, with a stair on either end, and centered on the original grand entry on the first floor. Interior 
finishes are painted wood, mostly fir, including original flooring, molding, wainscot, chalk boards and trays, and 
doors. Alterations to the building include window replacement, dropped ceilings in the classrooms, removal of 
two hipped-roof dormers and four chimneys above the roof line, the construction of an elevator in the space 
formerly occupied by the main entrance and central stair, and the installation of composition polymer tile, 
carpet, fluorescent lights, and other non-historic surfaces.

Narrative Description 

Setting

Central School is located in Milton-Freewater, Umatilla County, Oregon, a rural community of approximately 
6,000 residents, noted for its wheat fields, vineyards, and fruit orchards. The school stands in a largely 
residential neighborhood on a 5.14-acre site between DeHaven Street, S.W. 2"'^, Elizabeth Street, and vacated 
Queen Anne St. at its original location in the very heart of the community. The original 1910 school now 
shares this site with a gymnasium, playfield, and other classroom buildings dating from 1951 through 1984. 
The immediate area of the school is surrounded by a paved area without landscaping. Modern mechanical 
equipment, a non-contributing storage container, and the contributing original bronze school bell that is set on 
a concrete plinth lie along the west exterior wall. A 1950s single-story classroom building lies to the south and 
is adjoined to Central School with a breezeway. A 1984 addition to this building lies to the west. McLoughlin 
Union High School is located to the north of Central School between the vacated Queen Anne Street and SW 
1®* Avenue.

Building: Plan and Layout

Central School consists of a central block measuring approximately 42’x 95’ with two full-height projecting 
bays. The first bay faces east and houses the former main entry and is approximately 3 x 29. The second bay 
extends west and houses classrooms on each of the floors. It measures 27’ x 83.’ By breaking the lines of the
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massive, main structure the architect has created a building with interesting contours, recesses, and roof 
lines, avoiding a basic box-shaped school building.

Walls

The building rests on a poured-concrete slab foundation laid 5 feet below grade, from which a 18-inch thick 
unreinforced-concrete stem wall extends 8 feet. Window openings interrupt the wall at regular intervals to 
provide daylight to basement classrooms - four windows on either side of the entrance bay of the east facade, 
eight windows distributed in a pattern of three-three-two-three along the west foundation, and seven windows, 
three on one side and four on the other, on the north and south entries. Foundation wall window openings at 
the southwest corner in the furnace area appear to have been filled with concrete between the piers and a 
coal chute installed at an early after construction date . The foundation walls are capped by a horizontal 
concrete header, approximately T high for the circumference of the building, with the exception of the east 
entrance bay, where the solid concrete footings are lower (approximately 3’ high), and terminate on either side 
of the east archway in projecting rectangular block plinths.

The masonry walls are composed of both red and black bricks arranged in an intriguing pattern of alternating 
long red bricks and short black ones to create an overall design reminiscent of a woven surface. The bricks 
are aligned in straight rows vertically and horizontally except in the case of arched window openings where the 
brick follows the contour of the arch for several courses to create a subtle but distinctive “eyebrow for each 
window. Concrete quoins define the corners of the walls as decorative reinforcement for the brick. Concrete is 
also employed to create sills and lintels for the windows. These concrete horizontal elements, arranged in 
wider bands above the window and narrow sills below further support the masonry walls and visually link the 
separate parts of the facade with their asymmetrical window arrangements. The exterior walls terminate in a 
painted-wood frieze with dentils under a broad over-hanging roof. The exterior brick wall and decorative 
elements are supported by a balloon-frame wood structure.

The main entry on the east fagade is centered in a projecting bay and features a cast-concrete arch, shaped 
to imitate rusticated stone arches as popularized by the Richardsonian Romanesque style. The wide arch 
rests on two concrete, Tuscan-style columns on plinths. The east entrance is filled in with a plywood wall and 
fitted with a utility door, which replaced the original recessed double entry doors in order to accommodate an 
elevator. Two stairs leading up to the open entry bay were removed when the opening was altered. Centered 
above the arch is a small concrete medallion that may once have served to support a flagpole. Moving up the 
wall, a horizontal belt course decorated with a rope and egg-and-dart pattern runs the width of the bay 
between the floors, and above this is placed a large recessed cast-concrete sign that reads "Central School" in 
capital letters. The bay terminates in a classical pediment with raking cornices, dentil moldings, and a 
decorative escutcheon in bas relief on its face. The sculpture is of painted wood, except for the Renaissance- 
style escutcheon, which appears to be painted cast concrete. Two other smooth-cast-concrete arched entries 
are found on the north and south facades of the school and are not recessed. The doorway at the south entry 
includes an exterior modern outdoor breezeway that connects the original building just above the concrete 
arch to an adjacent 1951-58 school building.

Windows and Doors

The original, irregular fenestration pattern is maintained throughout the building; although, many of the original 
wood-frame windows were replaced with smaller aluminum windows. Each classroom, as originally designed, 
has two exterior walls of windows, one with a row of four large rectangular triple-hung windows, and the 
adjacent exterior wall featuring a row of four, smaller, four-mulled windows set above the chalkboard. Almost 
all triple-hung windows were replaced with modern metal, double-hung sash windows and the upper arch or 
top sash areas covered with painted plywood in the 1970s. The original four-mulled double-hung windows are 
preserved and some are visible in portions of the basement foundation wall, but most are covered with 
plywood in an effort to conserve energy.
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Above the double doors at the north and south entrances are transoms with large curved lunettes, now filled 
with painted plywood, which probably were originally glass lunettes intended to provide light to the interior hall 
and stainways. It is not apparent whether the original glass above the doors was removed or simply covered 
over. The entry doors are all modern fire-proof metal replacements. The east entry door was replaced by an 
elevator and a modern metal single entry door in 1992. Despite the removal of the wood doors and windows, 
the original openings are still apparent and the original design intent is well-communicated.

Roof

The wooden roof features a light and elegant cross-gabled wood-frame hipped roof with a dormer/belfry at its 
peak on the east facade. The original cedar shake roof also included two additional wood hipped-roof dormers 
with two small windows, each facing east. These dormers flanked the central cross-gabled roof that forms the 
pediment of the east fagade. They were removed when the concrete “slate” roof was installed in the late 
1920s. Four large brick chimney tops (two on either side of the roofs center ridge on the east slope and two 
on the west slope) were removed in 2008 when an asphalt shingle roof was installed. The third dormer, once 
serving as a belfry and, open on three sides beneath a low hipped roof, is now boarded-up with painted wood. 
The original cast-bronze bell was relocated to the southwest outside comer of the school where it is displayed 
on a concrete plinth, suspended in its cast iron swing.

Interior

Access into the school is through one of three original entries, on the south and north ends of the building and 
on the east side. The east-side entry was designed as the main entry. From the east-entry bay one originally 
stepped through recessed double doors, with two square windows and a fanlight above, into a spacious 
hallway with a 14' -wide wooden staircase that led to the first-floor central hallway that runs north-south 
through the entire length of the building. This space was once lit by large windows above each of the three 
entryway doors, but is now lit with fluorescent light fixtures, suspended from the original 13-14' plaster ceiling. 
The ceiling is punctuated by a network of electrical conduit and sprinkler system pipes. The main north-south 
hallway terminates at each end in a split-level, enclosed wooden staircase with the wooden stairs covered with 
modern rubber/plastic flooring. The stair down leads to the ground-level entry and basement, and has a single 
wood rail. The modern double-door entries on either end open to a 6'x14' landing, with ceilings formed by the 
enclosed staircase and landing above. The entries originally featured wood-double doors and arched windows 
in the tympanum above. The stair to the second floor is more ornate and has a decorative square wood newel 
post and two wood railings that are stabilized with modern metal brackets and a wood kick board. The walls of 
the stairwell and landings retain their original 4’ high close-grain fir wainscot, trim, and lathe-and-plaster walls.

Entering the building from the north or south doors, one may descend six stairs to the basement-level hallway. 
On this level the floor is a polished-concrete slab and a single north-south hallway bisects the building. This 
hallway is fitted with modern metal fire doors at either end and the ceiling of the hall has been dropped to 7’. A 
new wall was constructed on the east side of the hall, narrowing the original 14' span to 7’. The ceiling is fitted 
with acoustical tile and fluorescent lights. The original large round air ducts hang below the ceiling to serve the 
furnace and airflow system, as do the grated openings at the top of the walls. The west- hall wall is plastered 
brick. Originally an unfinished area, two classroom spaces now occupy the east side of the basement. Each is 
entered through modern wooden entry doors, and both were originally lit by four large windows along one wall 
and three smaller ones above the chalkboard wall. These windows are now boarded, leaving only the lower 
half of three four-mulled original windows exposed in each room. The elevator, installed to comply with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, is located between the classrooms in the middle of the east wall. The 
associated sloping ramp along the east wall has a wood floor and modern drywall framing with handrails along 
its entire length, about 14'. Four approximately 4' x 10' brick walls are located to the left and right of the central 
hallway between the classrooms and in the furnace and "air" rooms. These are the base of the four brick 
chimneys whose walls rise up through the building and once projected from the roof. The original boiler was 
coal-fired, and there are two former coal chutes located at the southwest corner of the building, which is now 
the custodian's office. Next to this office on the west side of the hall is the furnace room, the "air room," a
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custodial storage room, and the now windowless boys' and girls' restrooms. The only restrooms for the 
building were always located here, but the rooms were modernized with fiberglass wall paneling, metal stalls, 
and modern sinks, etc.

The first floor includes four classrooms, one in each corner of the building with the entry halls running 
between, except on the west side where the space between classrooms was utilized as a cloakroom and 
storage space. Today it is used for storage and houses lockers. The original wainscot, door trim, and 
hardware are all still present throughout the hall; although, two built-in storage spaces on either side the entry 
on the east wall have been removed and covered. Lockers line the wall on either side. Each of the four main 
classrooms on this floor and the floor above are identical in size. They are each reported to measure 25' x 31' 
and afford 775 square feet of floor space. ^ Each was provided with a "wardrobe area of the walkthrough type" 
across the back end of each room, but these spaces are now used as supply closets. Inside the classroom the 
space retains nearly all of the original wainscot, molding, chalk boards and trays, etc; although, much of the fir 
woodwork is now painted instead of stained. Visible at the top and bottom of the back wall of each classroom 
are the metal grates for the original air circulation system housed in the brick chimneys that form part of the 
interior wall of each classroom. The original fir flooring of these rooms has been covered with composition 
polymer tile in the classrooms and carpeting in the halls to reduce noise levels. The most dramatic change to 
these classrooms is the new dropped ceilings with fluorescent lighting that reduced the ceiling height from 13.’ 
Between the first and second floors on the north side is a small 12’ x 14’ room originally used as the principal’s 
office.

On the second floor, the four-classroom plan is retained and the level of integrity is similar in the hall and 
classrooms. A small room, previously used as a fifth classroom, is located in the middle of the hallway's east 
side, and now serves as the staff lounge and elevator entry. On the opposite side of the hallway is an opening 
to a historic fire escape that currently houses lockers and a closet. At the northwest corner of the top floor is a 
narrow staircase - the only stair balustrade in the school with the original stained-wood finish. This elegant 
turned balustrade includes the distinctive paneled and wooden baluster posts with bowl tops. This stairway 
provides access to a storage room, known as the “Crow’s Nest,” which has been used in the past as an office. 
Built-in shelving is located on the east and west walls. From this room the attic is accessed through a ceiling- 
mounted access door.

Alterations

The alterations to Central School in the 100 years of its service includes the removal and replacement of many 
exterior windows and doors; the boarding up of most window openings; removal of two dormers and four 
chimney tops; new roofing, installation of new heating, cooling, plumbing, electrical, and sprinkler systems; 
and modification of the main entry to accommodate an elevator. New interior floor coverings were installed 
throughout, and both bathrooms have been completely remodeled. A single window opening on the upper 
west side was enlarged into a fire escape door at one time. The fire escape has since been removed. New 
walls have been added in the classroom spaces in the basement. These alterations are respectful of the 
building's integrity, and aside from the addition of the elevator and chimney removal, have not significantly 
distorted the original structure. The original design intent is still apparent, including the original fenestration 
pattern and east fagade entry. No structural additions have been added to the building.

' State Department of Education. "School Building Survey." Salem: December 1961
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8. Statement of Significance
Applicabie Nationai Register Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property 
for National Register listing.)

A Property is associated with events that have made a 
significant contribution to the broad patterns of our 
history.

B Property is associated with the lives of persons 
significant in our past.

C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics 
of a type, period, or method of construction or 
represents the work of a master, or possesses high 
artistic values, or represents a significant 
and distinguishable entity whose components lack 
individual distinction.

D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information 
important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

A Owned by a religious institution or used for religious 
purposes.

B removed from its original location.

C a birthplace or grave.

D a cemetery.

E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.

F a commemorative property.

G less than 50 years old or achieving significance 
within the past 50 years.

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions.)

EDUCATION

Period of Significance 

1910-1921

Significant Dates

1910, Construction of Central School completed 

1921, Construction of McLoughlin Union High 

School and end of period of significance

Significant Person
(Complete only if Criterion B is marked above.) 
N/A

Cultural Affiliation 

N/A

Architect/Buiider

Charles Edward Finkenbinder, Architect

E. A. Williams, Builder

Period of Significance (justification)

The period of construction extends from Central School's 
construction in 1910 to the opening of McLoughlin Union 
High School in 1921 which replaced Central School as 
the community high school.

Criteria Considerations (explanation, if necessary) 

Not applicable.
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Statement of Significance Summary Paragraph (Provide a summary paragraph that includes level of significance and 
applicable criteria.)

Central School is eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places for its local significance uncier 
Criterion A, Education. In 1909 School District 31 proposed a plan to build two new brick schools, one each for 
the towns of Milton and Freewater, to meet the increasing demands of a booming population. Expansion 
during this period continued, and Grove School was opened five years later in 1915. Of the three buildings, 
Central School is the best representation of the growing educational needs and aspirations of the community 
in the first decades of the twentieth century. Central was the largest of the three schools and retains the most 
integrity. It was also notably the only facility in the area that provided a free public high-school education. The 
period of significance begins in 1910, the date that the school was completed, and extends through 1921 
when Central School ceased to serve as the community high school, replaced by the larger. Art Deco-style 
McLoughlin Union High School.

Narrative Statement of Significance (Provide at least one paragraph for each area of significance.)

Central School is significant as the community’s first public high school and for its association with the 
development of education in the towns of Milton and Freewater. Between the establishment of the town plat in 
1872 and the construction of Central and Freewater Schools in 1910, the twin cities of Milton and Freewater 
experienced phenomenal population growth. After being opened to Euro-American settlement in 1860 many 
rushed into the Walla Walla Valley to homestead or were lured by the prospect of gold in nearby Idaho. Soon 
these small towns grew from just a few farms and log cabins into a fully-fledged community.

In 1909, School District 31 embarked on an ambitious program that called for the construction of one new 
brick school for each of the towns of Milton and Freewater to meet the educational needs of a rapidly growing 
population. Plans also called for expanding the School District’s services by offering free high school 
education at Central School, a first in the community. While the district sought to meet a practical need,
Central School was not a simple utilitarian design. Instead it was an architect-designed statement that 
heralded the maturation of the community and communicated the town’s hopes for a prosperous future. Under 
the direction of Walla Walla, WA architect, Charles Edward Finkenbinder, the building reflected the latest in 
school design including modern mechanical equipment and well-appointed interiors. Finkenbinder’s 
incorporation of Classical, Renaissance, and Romanesque design elements into the building's exterior 
successfully communicated the educational purpose of the facility and the aspirations of a successful and 
rapidly growing town. Reflecting a steadily growing student population, the old wood-frame Grove School was 
replaced five years later by a larger brick building and Freewater School was expanded. Of the three public 
schools constructed in town during this period of expansion. Central and Freewater Schools in 1910 and 
Grove School in 1915, only Central School still communicates its historic significance. Freewater School was 
demolished in 2008 and Grove School no longer retains its character-defining features, leaving Central School 
as the lone representation of this period.

Developmental history/additional historic context information (if appropriate)

Settlement and Growth in Milton and Freewater

When Central School was completed In 1910, the citizens of Milton and Freewater could look back 50 years to 
a time before the towns existed, when the empty hills were grazed by wild ponies that fed on the bunch grass 
growing luxuriantly on the hillsides, watered by the Walla Walla River as it flowed down from the nearby Blue 
Mountains to the valley below. Peaceful and beautiful as this area appeared to be - after the Whitman Incident 
of 1847 and the ensuing Cayuse War, even the Oregon Trail was rerouted to avoid the region and the area 
was essentially closed to settlement.^

^ W.D.Lyman, Lyman's History of Old Walla Walla County, vol. I (Chicago: S.l. Clarke Publishing, 1918), 216; The Whitman 
Incident and Cayuse War were important events that affected the history and development of the Walla Walla Valley and the 
relationship between Native Americans and Euro-American Settlers. More information about the Whitman Incident and the Cayuse

8
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While conflict discouraged Euro-American settlement until the 1860s. Once established the communities of 
Milton and Freewater grew quickly as more residents came to call the Walla Walla Valley home. W.S Frasier 
and his family arrived from Texas by wagon train in 1867 and filed a homestead claim in 1868 in the area of 
present-day Milton-Freewater. Sensing an economic opportunity, Frazier laid out a small town in 1872. A year 
later, an application for a post office was made by general consent in the name of Milton by W.A. Cowl.® A 
quickly increasing population prompted Mr. Cowl to donate a portion of his land for a two-story wooden school 
to serve the entire community - a Central School as it was called. Built in 1879, it quickly became too small 
and a larger Central School was built in 1888 on the same site. Eight years after the town plat was filed, the 
1880 Census recorded 544 persons in Milton and total of 1,037 residents in the general area.^

In 1886 the town Board of Trustees incorporated the growing town under the name of Milton City, named after 
Milton, New York, by postmaster W.A. Cowl, who originally hailed from there.® Two years later the small town 
was recorded by the Sanborn Fire Insurance Company as having a flour and grist mill, livery, general store, 
and other businesses and residences centered mostly along Main Street with other buildings along one of the 
other four recorded streets.® A wooden flume, constructed around 1882 to bring water from the Walla Walla 
River, ran through the center of town.^ By 1890 Milton had grown substantially. Most of the residences along 
Main Street had moved to other parts of town and citizens had more shopping options. Along Main Street one 
could find two liveries and a saddlery, cobbler, candy factory, tin shop, hardware store, druggist, printer, 
barber, tobacco shop, bank, and a large two-story public hall.® Businesses off Main Street included a seller of 
farm implements, the flour mill, and the Milton Foundry and Machine Company. The unincorporated town of 
Freewater sprang up just to the west during the same period, so named because residents were provided free 
water to settle there.®

Growth in Milton was fueled by a number of factors. The area had been closed to settlement ever since the 
Cayuse War, and when it was finally opened up in 1860 there were many who rushed in to homestead or were 
lured by the prospect of gold in nearby Idaho. Those who stayed in the valley were not gold seekers however, 
but farmers and ranchers who found the area well suited to raising livestock and the long growing season, mild 
climate, and fertile soil an excellent environment for the raising a wide variety cereal grains, vegetables, and 
fruits.’®

In the late-nineteenth and early-twentieth centuries, immigrants continued to arrive in search of land to settle 
and raise a family. There was a good living to be made from farming in one of the richest agricultural areas in 
the nation, which was advertised as "the bread basket of the world" by some. Subsequently land values 
soared.” In 1900 Milton had 804 residents. Ten years later the town boasted another 476 persons and a total 
of 2,998 residents lived in the area.’® Growing industry fueled this expansion. By 1909 agricultural produce 
was finding its way to markets around the world thanks to three transcontinental rail lines serving the area and

War may be found in William Robbins, Landscapes of Promise: The Oregon Story, 1800-1940, 1997.
^ Susan Harris Redding, “Still-Perkins House” nomination to the National Register of Historic Places (Salem: Oregon State 

Historic Preservation Office, 1993), Section 8, page 4; Umatilla County Historical Society, Umatilla County: A Backward Glance 
(Pendleton: Umatilla County Historical Society, 1981), 71-72.

U.S. Census Bureau, 1880 Census (Washington D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office,1880).
® Redding, Section 8, page 4; Umatilla County Historical Society, 71-72.
® Sanborn Map and Fire Insurance Company, “City of Milton, ORE, Umatilla County, 1888" (New York: Sanborn Map and Fire 

Insurance Company, 1888), 1.
^ Umatilla County Historical Society, 73.
® Sanborn - Perris Map Co., Limited, “Milton, Umatilla County, OR, 1890” (New York: Sanborn - Perris Map Co. 1890), 1.
® Redding, Section 8, page 4; Umatilla County Historical Society, 71-72; Despite some animosity and frequent controversy 

between Milton, a dry town, and Freewater, with its many drinking establishments, the two towns were consolidated in the early 1900s; 
although, official incorporation of the two communities into the City of Milton-Freewater did not occur until 1950. Redding, Section 8, 
Page 4.

Lyman, 216.
Ibid, 216.
U.S. Census Bureau, 1900 Census (Washington D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office, 1900); U.S. Census Bureau, 1910

Census (Washington D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office, 1910).
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connecting Milton with Spokane, Portland, Puget Sound, and beyond. Milton and Freewater had grown 
together by this time, but each had its own city hall and post office. Milton, the larger of the two, had an opera 
house, passenger train station, college and three churches. Available services included water, sewer, anid 
electricity. Warehouses, mills, and small factories were scattered in and around the two communities.^^ 
Observing the exponential growth, people frequently remarked in 1909 that in the brief span of one man's life 
the two towns had sprung up as if by magic, seemingly overnight, and had now become a community of 
almost 3,000. A real estate advertisement in the Milton Eagle newspaper in 1909 blithely predicted that "a 
million people" will be arriving in the valley looking for land to purchase. The sentiment was shared by many. 
Residents in 1909 were optimistic about the prospects for the both towns' future, as well they should have 
been, given the exponential growth they had witnessed in their own lifetimes.^"*

The Need for More Schools in Milton and Freewater

By 1909 continued growth had led to school overcrowding, and it was clear to the school board that additional 
space would be needed to accommodate anticipated growth. In April 1909 the Board presented the voters of 
School District 31 with a $35,000 levy to build two new brick schools, one in Milton and one in Freewater.^® 
That same year, the Methodist Episcopal Church sought to establish a college in Milton to address the need 
for higher education facilities.^® The public school levy passed, thanks to a recognized pressing need and a 
community electorate that was feeling the euphoria of unparalleled prosperity. However, the investment 
residents made in their community was not necessarily unique. Even the smallest communities vied with each 
other to build the most impressive public facilities they could afford as an expression of civic pride and to 
attract more residents. For example, the 500 citizens of the nearby town of Prescott, WA built a school 
(designed by Charles Finkenbinder) valued at $54,000 in 1918.

On January 7, 1909, the School District Board of Directors gave notice to the residents of Milton and 
Freewater that the $35,000 levy had been passed and that that bonds would be offered for sale to bona fide 
residents of the district. These bonds would have an interest rate not to exceed 5 percent per annum with 
interest payable semi-annually. As funds were being raised, plans for construction progressed. Bids for both 
schools were to be received by February 1, 1909. The new brick Central School was to be constructed on the 
same site donated by W.A. Cowl for the first Central School. By the middle of March, architect C. E. 
Finkenbinder of Walla Walla, Washington, had been chosen for the project, after careful deliberation through 
February and a final selection process in March, when Finkenbinder’s proposal to build a brick school on the 
site of the current school was selected.^®. Finkenbinder also drew plans for Freewater School which was to be 
built simultaneously and served as the architect for Columbia College, which began construction around the 
same time.^® The building is now the Milton-Freewater City Hall.

Under Finkenbinder’s direction. Central School was to be one of the most modern schools in the state with 
spacious halls and roomy stairways. There would be four large classrooms on each of two floors, and a 
basement that would house the forced-hot-air, coal-fueled boiler located in the southwest comer of the 
basement. The original 7’ tall, forced-air fan shipped from a company in New York is still in place in the "air

Sanborn - Perris Map Co., Limited, “Milton, Umatilla County ORE, 1910” (New York: Sanborn - Perris Map Co., Limited, 
1900), 1; Lyman, 216.

Lyman, 216.
Milton Eagle, “Notice of Sale of School Bonds" (Milton: Milton Eagle, 21 January 1909); Hereafter shortened notes 

identifying the name of publication, article title, and date will be given for this periodical; Due to a technical error the school bond had to 
be voted on again in April; Milton Eagle, “School Election Has Been Called for 19*'’,” 2 April 1909; Milton Eagle, “School Election is 
Called for Monday P.M.,” 16 April 1909.

Gina Harzheim, “Columbia College,”Nomination to the National Register of Historic Places (Salem; Oregon State Historic 
Preservation Office, 2003), Section 7, page 1-2, Section 8, page 1.

Lyman, 216.
Milton Eagle, “Notice of Sale of School Bonds,” 21 January 1909; Milton Eagle, “Plans for Central School Submitted,” 4 

February 1909; Milton Eagle, “Bids Are Open for New Central School Building,” 19 March 1909.
Milton Eagle, “Plans for Central School Submitted,” 4 February 1909; Milton Eagle, “Bids Are Open for New Central School 

Building, 19 February 1909.
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room," with its 3/5 horse power motor preserved, but no longer in use. This "state of the art" heating system 
was much praised for its efficiency in 1910. Fresh air was brought in to the "air room" on the west side of the 
basement and then heated by hot water pipes from the coal-fired furnace. The heated air was then blown by 
the fan through an elaborate duct system with individual controls for each duct, still in use, serving eight 
classrooms above as well as the basement. Two finely appointed restrooms, one for each sex, and two 
apartments, that could be converted to classroom use if needed, occupied the basement. The cost was 
estimated to be between $20,000 and $25,000. Bids for construction were to be received by noon on June 9, 
1909 at the office of George Miller, clerk pro tern of the school district. Bids would also be received at the 
same time for the smaller four-room school house in Freewater. Earl Williams of Milton, Oregon was the 
successful bidder at $31,533, coming in at $1,333 below the next lowest bid.^°

By the second week in July, construction on the two schools had started. Freewater, the smaller of the two 
schools, progressed somewhat more rapidly than Central. Eight bricklayers and concrete men and six 
carpenters worked to complete the basements. It was planned that when all the brick work was completed, 
more carpenters would be put on the job. As work progressed on the new buildings, the school year started in 
the old school buildings on Labor Day. Twelve instructors had positions already, but it was expected that two 
more would be hired when the new buildings were completed. As part of the staffing decisions, the first two 
male teachers to ever work for the district were hired.^’

While construction on the two schools continued, the school board was looking fonward to the future.
Beginning in June of 1909, discussions centered on whether the city should have a public high school. 
According to the Oregon School Code of 1878, public high schools were required in cities with more than 1000 
students. Although the concept of free high schools in Oregon was highly controversial in the 1870s-80s, 
attitudes had changed by 1909 when Central School was constructed. By this time the idea had not only been 
widely accepted, but communities were eager to have the prestige of a free public high school as a way of 
attracting new residents to town. By 1910 there were more than 126 free public high schools in Oregon, 
despite the lack of a law requiring them in smaller communities. Public high schools had already been 
established for over two decades in nearby communities, Walla Walla (1889), Pendleton (1879) and Baker 
City (1889). In the small town of Milton, with fewer than 1000 students between the ages of four and 
twenty, no public high school was required by law. Yet Milton boasted a private school, Milton Academy (est. 
1886), and later Columbia Junior College was established in 1901. The institution offered high school 
education for which tuition had to be paid.^^ After some public discussion in September 1909, it was decided 
that the first four grades would be offered at Grove and the new Freewater Schools. The first through twelfth 
grades would be taught at Central, brining free high school education to the community for the first time.^'*

By November, the buildings were all but completed, but costs had overrun initial estimates. Another $8,850 
was needed to finish up work at Freewater School and to complete Central School’s basement bathrooms, 
floors, plaster, and woodwork, and to provide for future maintenance costs. A meeting was held the first week 
of December, and a compromise $5,000 levy was approved. Still, over $3,000 short, it was decided that if the 
rest of the funds could not be secured, the schools would open uncompleted.^®

Milton Eagle, “Bids Are Open For New Central School Building,” 19 March 1909; Milton Eagle, “Notice to Contractors,” 4 
June 1909; Milton Eagle, “Contract Let for School Building,” 11 June 1909; Milton Eagle, “Public Schools,” 3 September 1909.

Milton Eagle, “Teaghers [sic] Selected for the Coming School Year,” 19 February 1909; Milton Eagle, “Eighty Thousand 
Feet Lumber for Building,” 23 July 1909; Milton Eagle, “New School Houses are Building Fast,” 13 August 1909; Milton Eagle, “New 
Buildings are Progressing, 3 September 1909.

Report of the United States Commissioner of Education as cited in "A History of High School Legislation in Oregon to 
The Quarterly of the Oregon Historical Society vol. 24:3 (1923) pp. 2271910,"

Harzheim, Section 7, page 1-2, Section 8, page 1.
Milton Eagle, “The Annual School Meeting Monday Night,” 18 June 1909; Milton Eagle, “New Buildings are Progressing, 3 

September 1909; Milton Eagle, "Public Schools to Open on Monday," September 3, 1909.
Milton Eagle, “Will Ask Voters to Issue 6-Mill Levy,” 26 Nov 1909; Milton Eagle, “Compromise Secured on School Tax 

Levy,” 10 December 1909.
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On February 18, 1910, the Milton Eagle proudly announced that the new school was finished and ready for 
occupancy. The paper boasted, "seldom can be seen a finer school edifice than the one which now graces the 
grounds of District No. 31, and of which all Milton and the country surrounding can be proved ... a building of 
which their grandchildren may well be proud ... it is built to last, only the best and most permanent materials 
being used in its construction." At the time the building was touted as one of the most modern schools in the 
State of Oregon and was described in great detail in the local paper.^® The printed description noted that the 
building was "entered from 3 main thoroughfares [doorways] all opening into a large hall 14 feet wide and 
extending the full length of the building. There are eight [class] rooms, all of uniform size and appearance, with 
ceilings 13 feet high. Each room has a capacity of 60 pupils. On the landing may be found the office of 
Principal I. E. Young. This room is 12 x 14 feet. Each room has a closet for the teacher's needs, a place to 
keep chalk and other sundries, and a cloak and lunch room fitted with hooks, shelves, etc. Every room is wired 
for electric lights and ‘can be thus lighted at anytime.’ Electric buttons connect each apartment with the 
basement for signal purposes in furnishing heat, etc. The basement is composed of two large and light 
apartments, which can readily be converted into classrooms when necessary. The foundation and basement 
of the building are comprised of solid concrete, 18 inches thick, the walls being built of brick with plaster 
inside." The article praised builder E. A . Williams for constructing “a model of beauty and substantiality," and 
painting contractor, W. H. Bailey, for his "special pains" in selecting colors for the walls that were easy on the 
eye. The writer stated that the wall colors were "one of the best features of the building." Also noted were the 
"artistic and convenient arrangement of the rooms,” "practically perfect sanitary condition of the structure," 
sound dampening floors, fire resistant construction, and heating system.

A short three years later in 1913, yet more classroom space was needed and again a levy was put to voters 
and approved. In 1915 the two room, wood-frame Grove School was replaced by a brick six-classroom school 
house and another four classrooms were added to the Freewater School at the same time. Both continued to 
serve as grade schools. As those children aged, the high school population grew, and in response six years 
later the large two-story, Art-Deco style McLoughlin Union High School was built in 1921, just north of Central 
School. School construction and expansion then ceased for 30 years until the postwar period. Freewater 
School was demolished in 2008. In 2010, Grove School, not designed by Finkenbinder, was determined 
ineligible for listing by the Oregon State Historic Preservation Office due to the number of modern alterations. 
Of the public schools constructed between 1910 and 1915 , only Central School retains sufficient historic 
integrity to physically convey the growth of School District 31 and the towns of Milton and Freewater during the 
early-twentieth century.

Work History of the Architect

While little biographical history of Charles Edward Finkenbinder is available, his work is evident in schools and 
public buildings throughout the Walla Walla Valley region.^® A resident of nearby Walla Walla, WA, 
Finkenbinder was in many ways the ideal candidate for the job of architect for Central and Freewater Schools. 
He was young, 30 years of age, and apparently just getting started in his career at the time. Bom May 27,
1879 in West Pennsborough, Cumberland County, Pennsylvania, he grew up on the family farm and was likely 
comfortable working with the farmers and ranchers of Milton with whom he shared his farming background. 
Like those who had immigrated to Milton, he moved west looking for work. At the age of 17, Finkenbinder 
appears in the Iowa State Census records in Battle Creek, Iowa, and later in the U.S. Census of 1900 in t 
Jamestown City, Kansas where he was living alone. There he met and married Neva Ethel Wake on 
September 27, 1902, when he was 23 and she was 20. While little is known about Finkenbinder’s formal 
education, it is clear that he had acquired some technical training in engineering and draftsmanship. By 1906 
the couple had found their way to Walla Walla, WA, where Charles ran in 1906 as the Socialist Party

^ Milton Eagle, 18 February 1910; Milton Eagle, “Doigns of Your Sisters, Your Cousins and Your Aunts......... ” 13 August
1909; Milton Eagle. “First School Day,” nd; Milton Eagle, “New School House is Ready for Occupancy,” 18 August 1910.

Little is known about the life and work of C.E. Finkenbinder. He unfortunately does not appear in Architects of Oregon by 
Richard Ellison Ritz, and little is available in the archival record. The information presented here is what has been discovered to date, 
but much more remains to be learned.
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candidate for county surveyor.^® In the 1907 Walla Walla City Directory, he is listed as the secretary-treasurer 
for the Walla Walla Outdoor Advertising Company, and his wife is identified as a telephone operator. In 1908 
he is listed for the first time in the Walla Walla City Directory as an architect with an office at 507 W. Main St., 
and later at 306 Denny Building on Alder Street, downtown. In the next three years Finkenbinder completed 
several commissions, most notably several area schools.^°

During his years in Walla Walla as an architect, Finkenbinder designed schools for many of the small farming 
communities in the area. In doing so, he successfully met the needs and wishes of the communities he worked 
for. A local Prescott newspaper noted in regards to that town’s new school that, "Architect Finkenbinder 
planned according to the wishes of the board and the people."^’ While he was responsive to the needs of the 
citizenry, he retained his own vision of the structure. His designs speak to the community with an elevated 
tone of elegance combined with simple, sturdy values that eschew the pompous or staid. He borrowed freely 
from the architectural pattern books of the day, modifying the plans to meet the needs of his clientele. In 
keeping with the design ethos popular at the time, he employed an eclectic mix of Classical, Renaissance, and 
Romanesque Revival elements in his designs. Finkenbinder also integrated into his buildings modern and 
innovative mechanical systems, some of them still in use 100 years later.For the yeoman farmers of the 
region living far from urban centers, these imposing brick and concrete structures must have seemed like 
’’palaces on the prairie”.

Sadly, many of his "prairie palaces" are still unidentified or have been demolished. Newspaper accounts 
identify some of his commissions in eastern Oregon and Washington but for the most part, he shared the fate 
of many architects in the boom years of the West -employed, but never lauded for his accomplishments. No. 
record of buildings which he may have designed during his 7 year residence in Walla Walla has yet been 
discovered. Finkinbinder’s known commissions include:

• Femdale School, Ferndale, OR, constructed 1909; demolished in 1950s
• Public School, Attalia, WA, constructed 1909; demolished at unknown date
• Central School, Milton, OR, 1910; still used as school
• Freewater School, Freewater, OR, 1910; demolished 2008
• Columbia College, Milton, OR, 1910; now Milton-Freewater City Hall
• Elam Block Building, Milton, OR, 1910; originally a department store and now a funeral home
• Vincent School, Umapine, OR, 1911; now a bronze foundry
• Public School, Prescott, WA, 1912; demolished at an unknown date

He may also have designed the First National Bank and the Opera House on Main St. in Milton in 1909. 
Finkenbinder’s numerous commissions in Milton and Freewater occurred in just a few years, four of them, all 
schools, were completed in 1910. The largest and perhaps most impressive of the three is Columbia College, 
now Milton-Freewater City Hall. Similar to his other school commissions, the building was a grand structure - a 
two-story brick, central-block edifice with symmetrical flanking projections at each of the four corners, regular 
fenestration, decorative pilasters, and a centered full-height projecting pedimented entry supported by 
Corinthian columns and surmounted by a bell tower on a parapet roof. The building was listed in the National 
Register of Historic Places in 2003 under Criterion C as an example of Finkenbinder’s work and for Criterion A 
for its association with the school.^^ Similarly Central School was a brick building designed in late-nineteenth 
and early-twentieth century Revival styles. Less ornate than Columbia College, the building did still include a 
centered pedimented grand entry, classical design elements, and the latest in mechanical systems.

^ Iowa State Census. “1895 Iowa State Census" (State of Iowa, Des Moines, lA, 1895); U.S. Census Bureau, 1880, 1890, 
1900, 1910, 1920; Walla Walla Statesman (Walla Walla, WA, 27 October 1906).

^ Harzheim, Section 8, page 6.
Prescott Megaphone (Prescott, WA: Prescott Megaphone, 17 May 1912).

“ Harzheim, Section 8. page 6.
“ Harzheim, Section 8, page 1, Section 7, page 1-2
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Finkenbinder also designed two nearby school buildings in Ferndale and Umapine, Oregon. Ferndale School 
was demolished, but Vincent School in Umapine still survives. It was in many respects a stylisticly similar to 
Central School when constructed in 1911; although, it was half the size. Like Central School, it is a brick-and- 
concrete structure with a hipped roof and a central projecting pedimented bay centered on the east fagade. 
The entry with its brick archway and recessed double doorway is preserved, as are the original windows with 
their asymmetrical fenestration pattern. The basement foundation windows have covered, but the roof dormers 
and belfry are intact. The building housed four classrooms and an unfinished basement. A spacious hallway 
runs the length of the building from north to south on the west side, but the classrooms and gym additions, 
which were later added to the building on the west side 1920’s, cover or necessitated the removal of most of 
the west wall.

By 1914 Finkenbinder and his family evidently moved to California. His draft registration record for 1917 lists 
his home as Los Angeles where he is described as a self-employed architectural designer. From 1926-1942 
Charles E. Finkenbinder is listed in the Los Angeles City Directory with the following occupations: architectural 
designer: construction superintendent for the City of Los Angeles, and construction engineer. In 1929-1930 he 
designed the Sylvia Park Country Club in Topanga Canyon, L.A., which featured a clubhouse and hundreds of 
small vacation cabins for city dwellers wanting to escape to the country for relaxation. Other California projects 
are as yet unknown. He continued to live in Los Angeles until his death in February 26, 1954 at the age of 
74.^

Harzheim, Section 8. page 6; Los Angeles City Directory, 1936-1942.
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Previous documentation on file (NPS):
___ preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67 has been

requested)
____previously listed in the National Register
____previously determined eligible by the National Register
____designated a National Historic Landmark

recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #_

Primary location of additional data: 
X State Historic Preservation Office

____Other State agency
___ Federal agency

'M

X Local government
___University

Other
recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #. 
recorded by Historic American Landscape Survey # _

Name of repository;

Historic Resources Survey Number (if assigned): Not applicable.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property Less than one acre
(Do not include previously listed resource acreage.)

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

1 10 857362 5096797
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

Zone Easting Northing

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property.)

Zone Easting Northing

The boundary includes the physical extent of Central School itself and a perimeter of twelve feet measured from the 
farthest extending exterior point of the foundation on the north, east, and west walls and three feet from the south wall to 
form a rectangular boundary, which includes the building itself, contributing historic school bell, and non-contributing non­
histone HVAC equipment and storage shed on the west elevation.

Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected.)

Central School is located on a large tax lot which it shares with modem buildings and landscape features not associated 
with the resource’s historic significance. The boundary includes Central School, the original bronze school bell on the west 
elevation, and an adequate area surrounding the building to separate it from modern intrusions.

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Susan Davis, Chair, Historical Sites Committee, Pat Bier, Barbara Coddington, Betty Alexander, edited
by Oregon SHPO

Organization Milton-Freewater Area Historical Society date March 1,2010
street & number 54211 Turbyne Rd. telephone 541-938-5565

city or town Milton-Freewater state OR zip code 97862
e-mail N/A
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Additional Documentation
Submit the following items with the completed form;

• Maps: A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources. Key all 
photographs to this map.

• Continuation Sheets

• Additional items: (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items.)

Photographs:
Submit clear and descriptive photographs. The size of each image must be 1600x1200 pixels at 300 ppi (pixels per inch) 
or larger. Key all photographs to the sketch map.

Name of Property: 

City or Vicinity: 

County: 

Photographer:

Date Photographed:

Central School

Milton-Freewater

Umatilla State: Oregon

Susan Davis, 54211 Turbyne Rd., Milton-Freewater, OR 97862 
Oregon SHPO Staff

June 22, 23 2009; April 28, 2010

Description of Photograph(s) and number:

Photo 1 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0001)
Exterior View: Main Fagade, east side, looking west

Photo 2 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0002)
Exterior View: Main Fagade, east side entry detail, looking west

Photo 3 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0003)
Exterior View: North elevation, looking south

Photo 4 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0004)
Exterior View: West elevation, looking northeast

Photo 5 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0005)
Exterior View: West elevation, original school bell

Photo 6 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0006)
Exterior View: South elevation, looking northeast

Photo 7 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0007)
Interior View: Basement hall, looking north, classrooms to right, bathrooms and mechanical area to left

Photo 8 of 13; (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0008)
Interior View: First floor south stair, looking south

Photo 9 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0009)
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Interior View: First floor northeast classroom, looking southeast
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Photo 10 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0010) 
Interior View: First floor hall, looking north from south landing

Photo 11 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0011) 
Interior View: Second floor hall, looking south

Photo 12 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0012)
Interior View: North Stair, looking southwest, principal’s office to right, stair to “Crow’s Nest” to left

Photo 13 of 13: (OR_UmatillaCounty_CentralSchool_0013) 
Interior View: Office, “Crow’s Nest,” looking north

Property Owner: (Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.) 

name Milton-Freewater Unified School District #7

street & number 1020 S. Mill St.

city or town Milton-Freewater

telephone 541-938-3551 

State OR zip code 97862 I
Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being coilected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate 
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a 
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Presen/ation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C.460 et seq.).
Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18 hours per response including time for reviewing 
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of 
this form to the Office of Planning and Performance Management. U.S. Dept, of the Interior, 1849 C. Street, NW, Washington, DC.
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Figure 3: Tax Lot Map, Umatilla County Assessor 
Tax Lot of Central School marked with thick line and arrow. Note:

nomination does not include the entire tax lot.



NPS Form 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) 0MB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior 
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places 

Continuation Sheet
Section number Documents Page 22

Central School
Name of Property 
Umatilla Co., OR

County and State 
N/A

(Expires S-31-2012)

Name of multiple listing (if applicable)

CO

CO
m
oO
o

m
c
m

SOUTH DEHAVEN ST.

Classroom
Building

Central
School

Boundary of 
Listed 

Resource

Classroom
Building

Not to Scale

IS Hi39VZn3 Hinos
Figure 4: Site Plan
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Figure 5: Floor Plans, 3 pages

Figure 5: Central School Basement Floor Plan, Scale: 1/16” = 1’ 0’
t,
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Figure 5: Central School First Floor Plan, Scale: 1/16” = 1’ 0
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Figure 5: Central School Second Floor Plan, Scale: 1/16” = 1’ 0”
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EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET

REQUESTED ACTION: NOMINATION

PROPERTY Central School 
NAME:

MULTIPLE
NAME:

STATE & COUNTY: OREGON, Umatilla

DATE RECEIVED: 9/08/10
DATE OF 16TH DAY: lO/14/lO
DATE OF WEEKLY LIST:

REFERENCE NUMBER: 10000849

DATE OF PENDING LIST: 9/29/10
DATE OF 45TH DAY: 10/23/10

REASONS FOR REVIEW:

APPEAL: 
OTHER: 
REQUEl

N DATA PROBLEM: N LANDSCAPE: N LESS THAN 50 YEARS: N
N PDIL: N PERIOD: N PROGRAM UNAPPROVED: N

: N SAMPLE: N SLR DRAFT: N NATIONAL: N

COM^NT WAIVER: N
^ACCEPT ___ RETURN

ABSTRACT/SUMMARY COMMENTS:

REJECT 16-ZOjODATE

Entered In
The National

of
Historic Places

RECOM./CRITERIA_

REVIEWER

TELEPHONE

DISCIPLINE_

DATE

DOCUMENTATION see attached comments Y/N see attached SLR Y/N

If a nomination is returned to the nominating authority, the 
nomination is no longer under consideration by the NPS.

























































T3regon
Theodore R. Kulongoski, Governor

September 2,2010

Parks and Recreation Department
State Historic Preservation Office 

725 Summer St NE, Ste C 
Salem, OR 97301-1266 

(503) 986-0671 
Fax (503) 986-0793 

www.oregonheritage.org

Ms. Carol Shull

National Register of Historic Places 
USDOI National Park Service - Cultural Resources 
1201 "Eye" Street NW, 8th Floor 
Washington, D.C. 20005

Re: National Register Nominations 

Dear Ms. Shull:

At the recommendation of the Oregon State Advisory Committee on Historic Preservation, I 
hereby nominate the following historic properties to the National Register of Historic Places.

CENTRAL SCHOOL
306 SW 2ND ST
MILTON FREEWATER, UMATILLA COUNTY

IRVINGTON HISTORIC DISTRICT
ROUGHLY BOUND BY NE FREMONT , NE 27TH AVE., NE BROADWAY, NE 
7TH AVE, PORTLAND VCTY, MULTNOMAH COUNTY

We appreciate your consideration of these nominations. If questions arise, please contact 
National Register and Survey Coordinator Ian Johnson at (503) 986-0678.

Sincerely,

Roger Roper
Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer

End.


